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Appear ances: WlliamF. Taylor, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Departnent of Labor, for Petitioner;
Herman W Lester, Esq., Conbs and Lester, PSC
Pi keville, Kentucky, for Respondent.

Bef or e: Admi ni strative Law Judge Steffey

Pursuant to a notice of hearing issued April 18, 1980, as suppl enent ed
on April 28, 1980, a hearing in the above-entitled proceedi ng was held on
June 3, 1980, in Pikeville, Kentucky. The four Proposals for Assessnent of
Civil Penalty involved in this proceeding allege a total of 59 violations
of the mandatory health and safety standards. Toward the end of the first
day of hearing, evidence had been received and bench decisions had been
rendered as to eight of the 59 alleged violations. Followi ng a recess
counsel for the parties stated that they had reached a settlenent agreenent
with respect to the remaining 51 alleged violations. Thereafter, counsel'
for the Secretary of Labor filed on Decenber 9, 1980, a notion for approva
of settlenent with respect to the 51 violations as to which no bench decision
had been rendered

The-first portion of this decision will be a final issuance of the
bench decisions rendered at the hearing with respect to the eight contested
violations. The renmining portion of the decision will discuss the notion
for approval of settlenment. Under the parties' settlenent agreenent, respon-
dent has agreed to pay reduced penalties totaling $2,850 in lieu of the
penalties totaling $7,025 proposed by the Assessnent O fice

The bench decisions reproduced bel ow pertain entirely to the Proposa
for Assessment of Civil Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT 79-264. The bench
deci si ons appear throughout the transcript follow ng the conpletion of evi-
dence with respect to the eight contested violations. The transcript pages
on which the bench decisions begin are shown follow ng the headi ngs for each
contested violation. The introductory paragraphs which appear bel ow under
the heading "Contested Violations" are applicable to all of the bench
decisions (Tr. 21).
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Docket No. KENT 79-264

Contested Violations

Thi s consol i dated proceedi ng involves four Proposals for Assess-
ment of Civil Penalty filed by the Secretary of Labor. The Proposals
in Docket Nos. KENT 79-264 and KENT 79-265 were both filed on
Septenber 13, 1979, and seek assessment of civil penalties for 20 and
19 violations, respectively, of the nandatory health and safety stan-
dards by Eddie Coal Conpany. The Proposals in Docket Nos. KENT 79-370
and KENT 80-131 were filed on Cctober 17, 1979, and February 11, 1980,
respectively, and seek assessment of civil penalties for 3 and 17
alleged violations, respectively.

The issues in a civil penalty case are whether violations occurred
and, if so, what civil penalties should be assessed, based on the six
criteria set forth in section 110(i) of the Federal Mne Safety and
Health Act of 1977. Sonme of the criteria may be considered in a genera
manner so that the consideration of those criteria become applicable
for an entire proceeding, such as this one, which involves a large
nunber of alleged violations.

At least two of thecriteria may be considered on a general basis in
this case. As to those tuo criteria, there has been a stipulation by the
parties. As to the criterion of the size of the operator's business,
the parties have stipulated that respondent in this case is a snal
operator which produces at the present time about 134 tons of coal per
day. It was first stated that payment of penalties would not cause the
operator to discontinue in business (Tr. 5). [After the settlenent
conference, however, the parties stipulated that paynment of penalties
woul d have an adverse effect on respondent's ability to continue in
busi ness and a period of 90 days within which respondent woul d be
required to pay the settlenent penalties was requested (Tr. 185).]

Gtation No. 712092 dated 2/13/79, Section 75.517 (Tr. 23)

Findings. Section 75.517 requires, among other things, that power
wi res and cabl es shall be insulated adequately and be fully protected.
The violation alleged in Gtation No. 712092 occurred because the
operator had failed to use additional insulation where a cable passed
through a permanent stopping before it connected to a water punp |ocated
in the min intake airway. The violation was nonserious and the oper-
ator was nonnegligent. It was stipulated that the operator made a good
faith effort to achieve rapid conpliance

Concl usi ons. Al though the former Board of Mne Qperations Appeal s
has held that an operator is conclusively presuned to know what the
mandat ory health and safety standards are, the violation in this in-
stance involves sonething that an operator woul d not necessarily have
known that he was required to do, because the wire in this instance
was in good condition and did not have any worn places on it. The wire




did have insulation on it so that the operator could have concl uded
that this particular wire was insul ated adequately and was fully
protected at the point where it passed through a pernmanent stopping.
However, the inspector says that it is his policy to cite this type
of violation any tinme there's a possibility that stress and wear on
a wire mght expose bare wires and bring about a possible shock or
el ectrocution

The purpose of the Act and the regulations is to make a mine
just as safe as possible for the mners. Therefore, the inspector's
notive was good and it undoubtedly is a worthwhile practice to have
every possible protective step taken to assure that no one will be
shocked or electrocuted. However, in assessing a penalty for this
particular violation, | think that a very nomi nal penalty should be
assessed in view of the circumstandes that | just recited. Conse-
quently, a penalty of $1 will be assessed for this violation.

Citation No. 712094 dated 2/13/79, Section 75.303 (Tr. 61)

Findings. Section 75.303 provides, anong other things, that belt
conveyors on which coal is carried shall be exanm ned after each coal-
producing shift has begun and that "such mne exaniner shall place his
initials and the date and tine at all places he examnes." | find that
no violation of section 75.303 was proven in this instance because
the inspector cited a violation of that section based on his concl usion
that no adequate preshift exam nation had been made. The violation
which occurred, if any, was that the section foreman had failed to
make an examination of the belt conveyor during the shift which was
being worked at the time the'inspector cited the violation.

Concl usi ons. | have run into this particular alleged violation
on other occasions and each tine the inspectors either cited a vio-
ati on based on the fact that the section foreman had failed to make
an onshift exanination by onmitting the checking of the conveyor belt
or the inspector cited the operator for failure to nake a preshift
exam nation based on the fact that the inspector was unable to find
the initials and date and time showing that the preshift exam nation
had been nade

In this instance, the inspector says that the section foreman
i ndi cated that he had so nuch work to do in the mne that he had been
unable to nake an examination of the belt at the tine the inspector
was talking to the section foreman. The difficulty with citing the
violation the way the inspector has done it is that he has based it
on a conclusion that the section foreman nmust place his initials and
the time and the date at the places exanmi ned when he nakes an onshift
examination’ of the conveyor belt. The way the sentence is worded in
section 75.303, the exanination of the belt conveyor is sonething
that has to be done after the shift begins, but the mne examner is
required to place his initials and the date and the tine at all places
he exami nes and that initialing requirenent connects back to the nine
exam ner who was involved in making a preshiftexam nation.
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It is ny conclusion that the sentence about exam ning belt con-
veyors after the shift has begun is out of context with the require-
ments set forth in section 75.303 for the obligations and duties of
the preshift examiner. | think that Gtation No. 712094 so m xes
the obligation of the preshift examner with those of the section
foreman, who was nmaking the onshift examination, that it's an inproper
conclusion to assume fromthe fact that the inspector was unable to
find these initials and the date along this conveyor belt that the
onshift examnation of the belt conveyor had not been made or woul dn't
have been made on this particular day. As counsel for the operator
has observed, the section foreman was with the inspector during part
of the shift and, therefore, his inspection of the belt at that time
may not have been done because he was with the inspector.

The inspector does not claimthat the entries in the preshift
exam nation book had not been made. Since there is no allegation that
the exam nations were not being made and were not being recorded, |
cannot find that a violation occurred nerely because the inspector -
was unable to find nore dates along the conveyor belt than he did on
February 13, 1979.

Ctation No. 712095 dated 2/13/79, Section 7.5.1725 (Tr. 78)

Findings. Section 75.1725 provides that nobile and stationary
machi nery and equi pnent shal | be naintained in a safe operating condi -

tion and machinery or equipnment in unsafe condition shall be renoved
from service imediately. A violation of section 75.1725 occurred
because the inspector observed on a 3,000-foot conveyor belt 36 bottom
rollers which were stuck. The violation was noderately serious in the
ci rcunst ances because none of the rollers were touching coal on the
mne floor and the mpjority of themwere in areas where there was

noi sture.  The operator had failed to observe the stuck rollers during
the preshift or onshift examination and they're easy to see and shoul d
have been |ocated. Consequently, there was a rather high degree of
negligence. The operator denonstrated a good faith effort to achieve
rapid conpliance

Conclusions. Inasmuch as the violation was noderately serious.
that there was a high degree of negligence, and that a small operator
is involved, a penalty of $50.00 is appropriate. There is no history
of previous violations to be considered, according to Exhibit No. 45.

Gitation No. 712098 dated 2/13/79, Section 75.523 (Tr. 99)

Findings. Section 75.523 provides that electric face equipnent
shal | " be provided with devices that will pernit equipnent to be de-
energi zed quickly in the event of an emergency. A violation of Section
75.523 occurred because the operator of the Joy |oading machine had
moved the panic bar on the machine to an upward position so that it
woul d not quickly deenergize the equipment in the event of an energency.
The violation was serious in that it would be possible for an equi pment
operator to be caught and crushed against a rib because of his inability
to reach the panic bar in an emergency situation. Sone-equi pnent
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operators have a practice of placing the panic bar in an upward
position to prevent accidental deenergization of the equipment. Un-
fortunately, when the panic bar is placed in an upward position, it
iIs then not close enough to the operator to facilitate immediate
usage of the panic bar in an emergency. The equipnent operators'
practice of placing the panic bar in an upward position has nmade it
difficult for respondent to prevent the type of violation cited in
this instance. The evidence indicates that respondent denonstrated
a good faith effort to achieve rapid conpliance

Concl usions. As Mr, Taylor pointed out in his summary, the pro-
visions of section 75.523-2 indicate that novement of no nore than
2 inches should have to be nade in order to actuate the deenergiza-
tion device. There is no real argunment in this instance as to whether
the violation occurred. The question is whether a large penalty shoul d
be assessed because of the fact that the violation resulted from sone-
thing that the equi pment operator himself brought about. The Conm s-
sion has recently held that mne operators are liable for violations
regardless of fault, and the Conm ssion has been very strict in re-
quiring that a penalty be assessed in anv situation where a violation
has occurred because the philosophy behindthe use of civil penalties
Is that penalties do deter the mne operators from allow ng repeat
viol ations.

In a situation such as this, | can synpathize with Mr. Lester's
argument that it's difficult to replace mners and that a mne operator
can't discharge one every time he violates a safety regulation. The
only thing he can do is to insist upon stricter supervision by the
section foreman over people who do not take safety as seriously as
they should. But I think that the precedents would require ne to
assess a fairly large penalty in this instance in order that repeat
violations of this nature are discouraged in every possible way. So,
primarily, on the basis of the seriousness of the violation and recog-
nizing that the operator is not guilty of a high degree of negligence
inthis case, a penalty of $50.00 will be assessed.

| notice under the criterion of history of previous violations
that Exhibit 45 shows that the operator has two previous violations
of section 75.523. It has been ny practice to increase penalties
when there is shown to be a history of previous violations. There-
fore, -considering the fact that a small operator is involved, the
penalty will be increased by $10.00 under the criterion of history of
previous violations to a total penalty of $60.00.

Ctation No. 712099 dated 2/13/79, Section 75.400 (Tr. 133)

Fi ndings. Section 75.400 provides that coal dust, including float
coal dust deposited on rock-dusted surfaces, |oose coal, and other
conbustible materials shall not be permtted to accumulate in active
workings. A violation of section 75.400 occurred because the inspector
found isol ated pockets of |oose coal ranging in depth from1l to 3 inches
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inentries 1 through 7. The accunul ations were near the ribs and
were in an area which was 150 feet fromthe working face. The

area was rock dusted except for the accumul ations and, consequently,
the violation was only noderately serious. Respondent had aprogram
providing for cleaning in the area and apparently the accunul ations
resulted from shooting fromthe solid so as to cause coaitofall
fromthe ribs. The evidence indicates that the operator showed a
good faith effort to achieve rapid conpliance

Conclusions. The Commission in Od Ben Coal. Catmany, 1 FMSHRC
1954, (1979), held that the mere existence of accumulations Of com
bustible materials is a violation. The Comission Said the purpose
of the Act is to prevent fire and explosions as a result of accumu-
| ations of conbustible materials.

In this instance, however, we have sone very small accumul ations
and, although there is evidence that there are sone permanent splices
that existed in this working area, the fact remains that these parti-
cular accunul ations were close to the rib and that the working area
was wet except for the area close to the rib where the accumul ations
existed. Consequently, | feel that there was little chance of fire
or an explosion from these particular accunulations, particularly
since no nethane has been detected in this'mne. Therefore, | think
that a small penalty should be assessed in this instance of $25.00.
Exhibit 45 shows that respondent has previously violated section
75.400 on two occasions, so the penalty will be increased by $10.00
under the criterion of history of previous violations to a tota
of $35. 00.

Citation No. 712100 dated 2/13/79, Section 75.601 (Tr. 151)

Findings. Section 75.601 requires, among other things, that
di sconnecting devices used to disconnect power from trailing cables
shall be plainly marked and identified, so that disconnection of
such devices can be easily determned through visual observation
A violation of section 75.601 occurred because the inspector found
that, although the disconnecting devices for the trailing cables for
the roof-bolting machine, the |oading machine, and the shuttle car
had been plainly marked at sone time, the disconnecting devices were
not plainly marked on the day that he wote Gtation No. 712100.

The violation was serious because, if a person had been asked
to disconnect a given cable so that the electrician, for exanple
could work on'the cable at a splice or for another reason, the failure
of the person to disconnect the correct cable could result in a
possi bl e shock or electrocution.

There was ordinary negligence in this instance because the oper-
ator had at one tine narked these cables and it is a question of fact
as to how well narked they were at this time. There's always the
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possibility for the electrician to feel that his markings were stil

| egible but might not have been-legible to sonme other enployee who

m ght have been asked to di sconnect these devices. The evidence shows
that there was a good faith effort made to achieve rapid conpliance.

Conclusions. Inasnmuch as a small operator is involved, that
the violation was serious, and that there was ordinary negligence
a penalty of $55.00 would be assessed, but Exhibit 45 indicates that
the operator has a history of one previous violation of section 75.601.
Therefore, the penalty will be increased by $5.00 to $60.00 under the
criterion of history of previous violations

Ctation No. 712703 dated 2/13/79, Section 75.200 (Tr. 174)

Findings. Section 75.200 requires that each operator submit a
roof-control plan applicable to his mne. Respondent's roof-contro
plan required that a pry bar be provided for each roof-bolting
machine in the mine. Aviolation of section 75.200 occurred because
the pry bar was unavailable on the machine at the time the inspector
asked about it. The violation was noderately serious and the operator
was guilty of ordinary negligence. There was a good faith effort
made to achieve rapid conpliance

Conclusions. The inspector's testimony indicates that he believes
the violation was serious because he said, wthout the pry bar being
available to the operator of the roof-bolting machine, it mght have
been possible for the operator to | eave | oose material on the roof or
in an overhanging rib which would otherwi se be taken down, if the
pry bar were available. The inspector also referred to the existence
of kettle bottonms in this part of the mne

Respondent's witness stated that 75 to 80 percent of the roof in
the No. 14 Mne is sandstone and that the need for prying down mate-
rials such as slate is not a comon requirenent in this nine. Addi-
tionally, respondent's witness indicated that people, other than the
operator of the roof-bolting machine, do take the pry bars for other
purposes, even though respondent provides one for each' roof-bolting
machi ne

In such circunstances, a penalty of $25.00 would be assessed,
but Exhibit 45 shows that Respondent has three prior violations of
section 75.200. Since a small operator is involved, the penalty
will be incrt--.»d by $15.00 to $40.00 under the criterion of history
of previous . »lations.

Noncontested Viol ations

Docket No. KENT 79-264

Evidence with respect to Citation No. 712702, alleging aviolation of
section 75.523, was introduced on transcript pages 154 through 165, but
| granted a request by respondent’s counsel that no bench decision be
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rendered with respect to that alleged violation until respondent's counse
could call a witness to testify with respect to the violation (Tr. 164).
After the parties entered into a settlement agreenment, | granted their
request that they be permtted to include the violation of section 75.523
among the violations which became a part of the settlenent agreenent

(Tr. 186). On page 4 of the notion for approval of settlenent, | amre-
quested to rely upon the proof subnitted at the hearing in approving the
parties' settlement agreement with respect to Ctation No. 712702. That
citation alleged that respondent violated section 75.523 by having an i nop-
erative panic bar on its battery-powered tractor. The Proposed Assessment
sheet in the official file shows that the Assessment O fice considered the
violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence, to have been serious,
and proposed a penalty of $106 which respondent has agreed to pay in full
The evidence introduced at the hearing would support the findings made by
the Assessment Office. Therefore, the parties' settlenent agreenent should
be approved with respect to Citation No. 712702. The evidence which respon-
dent woul d have introduced if a settlenent had not been reached nmi ght have
caused ne to nake different findings fromthose nade above, but since the
parties agreed to settle the issues raised by Gtation No. 712702, ny review
is limted to determining whether the settlement agreement is reasonable,
rather than whether a violation occurred and whether respondent's evidence
if it had been introduced, would require different findings fromthose which
were originally nade by the Assessment Office

Evidence was presented on transcript pages 176 to 184 with respect
to Citation No. 712704, alleging a violation of section 75.517, but that
alleged violation also becane a part of the settlement agreement (Tr. 185).
The motion for approval of settlenment, at page 4, asks that | approve the
parties' settlement agreement on the basis of the evidence received at pages
176 to 184. Citation No. 712704 alleged that respondent had violated
section 75.517 by failing to reinsulate four small cracks in the trailing

cable to the coal drill. The Assessment O fice considered the violation
to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, and pro-
posed a penalty of $90 which respondent has agreed to pay in full. The

testinony at the hearing shows that the potential hazard was greater than

it was considered to be by the Assessnent Office because the inspector stated
that the coal drill was sitting in water and that its trailing cable was
lying in water when he first observed the coal drill (Tr., 180). O course
the inspector did not make his exam nation of the drill and its cable unti
the drill and its cable had been renoved fromthe water, but he said that

the cracks in the cable exposed any person who did touch the cable to
possible electrocution. Inasmuch as the parties agreed to nake this alleged
violation a part of their settlenent agreement before respondent cross-

exam ned the inspector or presented any evidence with respect to the alleged
violation of section 75.517, 4t would be inproper for me to find, on the
basis of the inspector's testinmony alone, that the Assessment Ofice erred
infailing to assign nore penalty points than it did to this alleged violation
under 30 C.F.R § 100. 3. It is sufficient, for settlement purposes, that
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the findings of the Assessment Office be supported by the evidence in the
record. | find that the settlement agreement under which respondent has
agreed to pay the full penalty of $90 proposed by the Assessnent O fice
shoul d be approved since the evidence supports the Assessment O fice's
findi ngs.

No evi dence was presented at the hearing with respect to any of the
other 49 violations alleged in this proceeding. Therefore, from this point
to the conclusion of this decision, the only considerations are those which
are normally considered in a settlenent proceeding, that is, whether the
motion for approval of settlement gives adequate reasons for approving the
amount of the penalties which respondent has agreed to pay.

Citation No. 712705 alleged that respondent had viol ated section
75.1722(b) by failing to provide a guard at the conveyor belt's tail pulley.
The Assessnent Ofice found the violation to have resulted froma high degree
of ordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been abated in a nornal
manner, and proposed a penalty of $140. Respondent has agreed to pay a re-
duced penalty of $60. The notion for approval of settlement states that
a reduced penalty is warranted because it was unlikely that a person coul d
be injured by the tail pulley here involved and that the operator was en-
titled to a reduction in assignment of penalty points under the criterion of
good faith abatenment because the conveyor belt was stopped i mediately after
the citation was witten and a guard was installed. | find that adequate
reasons have been given for approving the reduced penalty.

Citation No. 712706 alleged that a violation of section 75.313 had
occurred because the nethane nonitor on the | oadi ng nachi ne was inoperative.
The Assessnent Ofice found the violation to have resulted from ordinary
negligence, to have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a nornal
manner, and proposed a penalty of $52. Respondent has agreed to pay a
reduced penalty of $17. The notion for approval of settlement clains that
the reduction is prinmarily justified by the fact that respondent's mnine has
no history of ever having rel eased any nmethane and the fact that respondent
stopped production to achieve conpliance, thereby becomng entitled to
maxi mum consi deration for making an outstanding effort to achieve rapid
conpl i ance

Gtation No. 712707 alleged that a violation of section.75.604 had
occurred because the trailing cable to the | oading machi ne had permanent
splices-which were not effectively sealed to exclude noisture. The Assess-
ment Office considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negli-
gence, to have been serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and
proposed a penalty of $90. Respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty
of $30. The notion for approval of settlenment states that the reduced
penalty is warranted by the fact that, if a hearing had been held, the
evi dence woul d have shown that the cable was adequately insulated. Itis
al so stated that respondent is entitled to a reduction of the penalty pro-
posed by the Assessment O fice because respondent stopped production unti
further work could be done to insulate the trailing cable.
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Citation No. 712708 alleged that a violation of section 75.604 had
occurred because the trailing cable to the coal drill had four permanent
splices which were not effectively insulated to exclude noisture. The
Assessment Office found the violation to have resulted fromordinary neg-
|igence, to have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a norma
period of time, and proposed a penalty of $90. Respondent has agreed to
pay a reduced penalty of $30 which the motion for approval of settlenent
justifies for the same reasons referred to above with respect to Ctation
No. 712707.

Citation No. 712709 alleged that a violation of section 75.200 had
occurred because respondent had failed to provide straps in several entries
where kettle bottons were present in the roof. The Assessment O fice con-
sidered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have
been serious, to have been abated in a nornmal manner, and proposed a
penalty of $106. Respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $30
The reduced penalty is said to be warranted by the fact that respondent
stopped production to install the necessary additional roof support.. The
Assessment Office failed to give any consideration for rapid abatenent.

Ctation No., 712710 alleged that a violation of section 75.503 had
occurred because a burst conduit to the batteries on a tractor prevented
the tractor from being in permssible condition. The Assessnent Office
considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to
have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and
proposed a penalty of $66. Respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty
of $20 which is said to be warranted primarily by the fact that respondent
took extraordinary steps to gain conpliance,-whereas the Assessnent Ofice
gave insufficient consideration to respondent's effort to achieve rapid
conpl i ance.

Ctation No. 712711 alleged that a violation of section 75.202 had
occurred because several overhanging brows had not been taken down or
supported. The Assessment Office considered the violation to have resulted
fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been abated in a
normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $106. Respondent has agreed to
pay a reduced penalty of $30. The reduced penalty is said to be warranted
by the fact that respondent was having a difficult problemin connection
with brows left by shooting coal fromthe solid, that is, wthout use of a
cutting machine. Respondent was attenpting to elinminate the problem at
the time the inspection was made and respondent stopped production to
achieve rapid conpliance.

Citation No. 712714 alleged that a violation of section 75.202 had
occurred because several tinbers along the roadway had been disl odged and
had not been replaced. The Assessnent Office considered the violation to
have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been
abated in a normal nanner, and proposed a penalty of $106. Respondent has
agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $30. The reduced penalty is said to be
warranted primarily because of managenent's taking extraordinary steps to
achieve rapid conpliance.
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Citation No. 712715 alleged that a violation of section 75.512 had
occurred because respondent had failed to record the weekly exam nation
of electrical equipnment since no entries had been nmade in the book for
11 days preceding the inspection. The Assessnent Ofice considered the
violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been non-
serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty
of $52. Respondent has agreed to pay a penalty of $17 which is said to
be warranted by the nonserious nature of the violation and the fact that
the Assessnment Office failed to give respondent as much consideration' for
rapi d abatenent as the facts would warrant if a hearing had been held to
devel op all extenuating cicumstances.

Citation No. 712716 alleged that a violation of section 75.316 had
occurred because respondent had not submtted an updated version of its
ventilation, nethane, and dust control plan. The Assessnment O fice found
the violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence, to have been non-
serious, to have been abated in a nornmal manner, and proposed a penalty
of $38. Respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of. $12 which is
said to be warranted by the fact that respondent subnmitted an updated plan
on the day following the witing of the citation and thereby becane en-
titled to maxinum consideration for having achieved rapid conpliance

Most of the reductions in penalties under the settlement agreenent
for the violations alleged in Docket No. KENT 79-264 have been justified
in the notion for approval of settlement on the basis that the Assessment
O fice gave no consideration for respondent’'s having taken extraordinary
steps to achieve rapid conpliance. | would normally consider a settlenent
agreement to be sonewhat contrived by relying upon that aspect of the cri-
teria to such a great extent if it were not for the fact that the testinony
at the hearing supports such reliance (Tr. 159; 182-183). Therefore, for
the reasons given above, | find that the settlenent agreenment as to the
violations alleged in Docket No. KENT 79-264 should be approved

Docket No. KENT 79-265

Gitation No. 712717 alleged that a violation of section 75.1202 had
occurred because respondent had -failed to keep its mine map up to date by
maki ng tenporary notations thereon. The Assessment Ofice considered the
violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been nonseri ous,
to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $38. Re-
spondent - has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $5. The mption for approva
of settlenent states that the reduced penalty is warranted prinmarily because
respondent stopped production to achieve rapid conpliance, whereas the Assess-
ment Office allowed for only normal abatenent in assigning penalty points
under 30 C.F.R § 100. 3.

Al though the notion for approval of settlement does not discuss it,
there is built into the Assessnent O fice's nethod of assigning penalty
poi nts under section 100.3 a practice which can be difficult to appraise in
some cases. The practice | amtalking about is the Assessment Office's
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met hod of assigning penalty points under the criterion of history of previous
viol ations. It should be noted that all violations alleged in Docket No.
KENT 79-265 have assigned to themeight penalty points under the criterion
of history of previous violations based (1) on the fact that an average of
from1l to 20 violations were cited at respondent's mne each year during
the 24 nmonths preceding the occurrence of the'violations alleged in this ~
proceeding, and (2) on the fact that fromnnine-tenths of a violation to one
violation was witten at respondent's 'nine each tine an inspector spent

1 day nmking an examination at respondent's mine. Assignenment of eight
penalty points under the criterion of history of previous violations causes
each penalty in Docket No. KENT 79-265 to be assessed a m ni mum amunt of
$16, apart from any anbunt to be assessed under the other five criteria

The difficulty in adjusting for the Assessnent Ofice's nethod of com
puting penalties under the criterion of history of previous violations is
illustrated with respect to Citation No. 712712 here under consideration.
The violation consists of the operator's failure to nake tenporary notations
on a mine map. The parties' settlenent agreement has recogni zed the non-
serious nature of the violation and has agreed on a nominal penalty of $5
but it is difficult to justify such a snmall penalty under the Assessnent
Office's penalty formula described in section 100.3 because, under the
single criterion of respondent's history of previous violation, the Assess-
ment OFfice has proposed a-penalty of $16 attributable solely to respondent's
history of previous violations. There was introduced in evidence at the
hearing as Exhibit No. 45 a conputer printout which shows that respondent
has not previously violated section 75.1202. Therefore, in my opinion,
respondent, in this instance, should be assessed no penalty under the cri-
terion of history of previous violations. If one bears in mind, in this
instance, the need to elimnate the basic penalty of $16 built into the
Assessment Office's formula under the criterion of history of previous
violations, and then if one invokes the Assessment O fice's formula for
evaluating the criterion of good-faith abatement, by recognizing. that
respondent should be given full credit for its rapid achievenent of conpli-
ance, as clained by the notion for approval of s <+lement, the parties'
settlenment agreement, under which respondent has -eed to pay a penalty
of $5, can be approved

Ctation No. 712718 alleged that respondent ad viol ated section 75.316
by failing to provide a water spray at the dunping point. The Assessment
Office considered the violation to have resulted from ordinarv negligence,
to have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a normal manner,
and proposed a penalty of $52, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a penalty
of $17 which is said to be warrented primarily by the fact that respondent
st opped production to achieve conpliance and is therefore entitled to maxi-
mum consideration for rapid abatenent

irorion No. 712724 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.516-1
by using unapproved insulators to install - Dower conductor. The Assessnent
O fice found the violation to have resulted froma relatively high degree of
ordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have involved a |ack of good-
faith effort to achieve conpliance, and proposed a penalty of $275, whereas
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respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $100. The mption states
that the reduced penalty should be justified primarily on the fact that the
violation was corrected imediately. The evidence does not permit me to
approve the reduced penalty on the basis alleged on page nine of the nbtion
for approval of settlenent because Exhibit No. 3 in Docket No. KENT 79-265
shows that the inspector issued Withdrawal Order No. 712741 when respondent
failed to take pronpt action to abate the alleged violation. Respondent
did not abate the violation until July 27, 1979. The order of termination
stated that the inproperly suspended cable was replaced with a new cable
whi ch could carry a much higher voltage than the cable originally cited

for inproper suspension

| believe that a reduced penalty of $100 should be approved. The
anmount of $16 assigned by the Assessment Office under the criterion of
hi story of previous violations can be elininated because Exhibit No. 45
in this proceeding shows that respondent has not previously violated section
75.516-1 or any subsection of that section. The finding that respondent
failed to make a good-faith effort to achieve conpliance can also be elim-
nated along with the penalty of $20 associated with application of the
criterion of respondent's effort to achieve rapid conpliance. Addi tional |y,
the gravity of the violation was not as great as it was considered to he by
the Assessment Office. Both of the aforenmentioned reductions are supported
by the fact that the inspector's order was nodified to pernmt respondent to
continue to use the inproperly suspended cable for 3 nonths before a new
cable was installed. If the violation had been as serious as it was consid-
ered to be by the Assessment O fice, the inspector could not have extended
the time for conpliance for a 3-nonth period. In such circunstances, |
find that respondent's agreenent to pay a penalty of $100 should be approved

Citation No. 712729 alleged that respondent had violated section 77.1301
by allowing dry grass and paper boxes to accunul ate around the nagazi ne used
for storage of explosives and detonators. On page nine.of the notion for
approval of settlement, a request is made that the Proposal for Assessment
of Cvil' Penalty be dismssed in Docket No. KENT 79-265 to the extent that
it seeks assessnent of a penalty for a violation of section 75.1301 on the
ground that, if a further hearing had been held, the evidence would have
shown that the conbustible naterials had accunul ated a considerabl e di stance
fromthe expl osives magazine and did not create a condition prohibited by
section 75.1301. | find that good cause has been shown for granting the
motion to dismss, as hereinafter ordered

Citation No. 712725 alleged that a violation of section 75.503 had

occurred because the insulation was frayed on both sides of a cable reel on
a shuttle car. The Assessment Office considered the violation to have re-
sulted from ordinary negligence, tohave been noderately serious, to have
been abated in a normal nanner, and proposed a penalty of $66, whereas
respondent has agreed to pay a penalty of $21. The notion states in effect
that a reduced penalty is warranted because the violation was not as serious
as it was considered to be by the Assessnent Office and that respondent
shoul d be given maxi mum consi deration for good-faith abatement because
production was stopped until the condition could be corrected
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Gtation No. 712726 alleged th:: a violation of section 75.703 had
occurred because respondent had not provided a franme ground for a shuttle
car. The Assessnent O fice considered the violation to have resulted
fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been abated in a
nornmal manner, and proposed a penalty of $90, whereas respondent has
agreed to pay a penalty of $75. The notion seeks to justify the reduced
penalty on the ground that respondent is entitled to naxi num consideration
for rapid abatenment. Additionally, the Assessnment O fice assigned eight
penalty points under the criterion of history of previous violations,' whereas
Exhi bit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously violated section
75.703.

Ctation No. 712727 alleges that a violation of section 75.1303 had
occurred because respondent was using a shooting cable containing a tenpo-
rary splice which had not been insulated at all. The Assessnent Ofice
consi dered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to
have been serious, to have been abated in a nornal nmanner, and proposed a
penalty of $106, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of
$30. The notion states that the reduction is warranted because of respon-
dent's rapid abatement. Additionally, Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent
has not previously violated section 75.1303

Ctation No. 712728 alleged that a violation of section 75.1704 had
occurred because water had accunulated in the No. 3 entry to a depth of
from8 to 10 inches. The No. 3 entry is a haul age roadway and a return
air escapeway. The Assessnment O fice considered the violation to have
resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been
abated in a nornal nmanner, and proposed a penalty of $106, whereas respon-
dent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $35. The notion states that
the reduced penalty is warranted by managenment's havi ng taken extraordinary
steps to achieve conpliance. Also respondent is entitled to a reduction in
the penalty because Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously
been cited for a violation of section 75.1704.

Citation No. 712625 alleged that a violation of section 75.400 had
occurred because respondent allowed sone cardboard boxes to accunul ate
around the expl osives nagazine located 150 feet from the working face
On page 10 of the notion for approval of settlenment it is requested that
the Proposal for Assessment of Civil Penalty in Docket No. KENT 79-265 be
dism ssed to the extent that it seeks assessnment of a penalty for an alleged
violation of section 75.400 on the ground that the inspector who wote the
viol ati on subsequently vacated the citation as having been issued in error
| find that the motion for dismissal should be granted as hereinafter ordered

Citation No. 712626 alleged that a violation of section 75.1306 had
occurred because respondent had all owed the wagon used to haul expl osives
to be parked in the shuttle car roadway while | oaded with powder and det o-
nators and with the shuttle car's trailing cable resting against the explo-
sives wagon. The Assessment Ofice considered the violation to have resulted
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fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been abated in a
normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $106, whereas respondent has
agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $30. The mnotion states in effect that
the reduced penalty is justified by the fact that the violation was not as
serious as it was considered to be by the Assessment O fice and by the fact
that respondent is entitled to maxi mum consideration for rapid abatement.
Addi tional ly, respondent has not previously violated section 75.1303.

Citation No. 712627 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.512
by failing to maintain a bell on a scoop in an operable condition. On
page 11 of the notion for approval of settlenent it is requested that the
Proposal for Assessnent of Civil Penalty be dismssed to the extent that it
seeks assessnment of a civil penalty for an alleged violation of section
75.512 because the inspector who wote the citation later vacated it as
having been issued in error. | find that the notion to dismss should be
granted as hereinafter ordered

Ctation No. 712628 alleged that respondent had viol ated section
75.1704-2(d) because a map to show desi gnated escapeways fromthe working
section to the main escape system had not been provided. The Assessnent
O fice considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence,
to have been nonserious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and pro-
posed a penalty of $40, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a penalty of $13
The notion states that a reduced penalty is warranted because respondent is
entitled to maxi num consideration for good-faith abatement. A'so, Exhibit
No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously violated section 75.1704.

Ctation No. 712629 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.1704
by failing to mark the second escapeway properly. The Assessment Ofice
considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have
been nonserious, to have been abated in anormal manner, and proposed a
penalty of $40, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a-penalty of $13. The
motion gives the sane reasons for allowing a reduced penalty wth respect
to Gtation No. 712629 as were given above with respect to Ctation No
712628

Citation No. 712630 al l eged that respondent had violated section 75.200
by failing to provide canopies for two main entries as required by respon-
dent's roof-control plan. The Assessment Office considered the violation
to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have
been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $106, whereas
respondent has agreed to pay a penalty of $50. The motion states in effect
that the reduced penalty is warranted because the violation was not as
serious as it wasconsidered to be by the Assessnent Office and that respon-
dent is entitled to maximum consideration for having achieved rapid conpliance.

Ctation No. 712631 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.1001
by failing to renove sone rocks and trees froma highwall. The Assessnent
Ofice considered the violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence
to have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a normal manner,
and proposed a penalty of $78, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a penalty
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of $25. The motion states that the reduced penalty is warranted because
respondent is entitled to consideration for rapid abatement. Additionally,
Exhi bit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously violated section
75.1001.

Citation No. 712632 alleged that respondent had viol ated section
77.1102 by failing to post warning signs to prohibit smoking and open
flames near a storage area for conbustible liquids. The Assessnent O fice
considered the violation to have been the result of ordinary negligence
to have been nonserious, to have been abated in a normal nanner, and pro-
posed a penalty of $40, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a penalty of $5
The motion states that the reduced penalty is warranted on the ground that
the enpl oyees were aware of the location of the storage area and knew not
to snoke in that area. It is also alleged that respondent is entitled to
maxi mum consi deration for rapid achi evenent of conpliance. Finally,

Exhi bit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously violated section
77.1102.

Citation No. 712634 alleged that respondent had viol ated section 75.303
because respondent had failed to note at seals in the mne that weekly in-
spections of the seals at an abandoned area had been made. The Assessnent
O fice considered the violation to have been the result of ordinary negli-
gence, to have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a nornal nanner,
and proposed a penalty of $66, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced
penalty of $15. The notion states that the reduction in penalty is justified
because the operator had exami ned the majority of the seals. It is alleged
that the violation was not as serious as it was considered to be by the
Assessnment OFfice because the mine has never been known to rel ease any
methane.- It is also clainmed that respondent is entitled to maxi mum con-
sideration for rapid abatement. Additionally, respondent has not previously
viol ated section 75.313, according to Exhibit No. 45.

Citation No. 712635 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.200
by failing to provide additional roof support for a return airway which is
used to transport enployees and supplies. The Assessment O fice found the
violation to have resulted froma high degree of ordinary negligence, to
have been serious, to have involved a | ack of good-faith effort to achieve
conpliance, and proposed a penalty of $305 whi ch respondent has agreed to
pay in full. The notion states that the Assessment O fice properly eval uated
the criteria in this instance and that the full amount proposed by the Assess-
ment Office should be paid

Citation No. 712636 alleged that respondent had viol ated section 77.1104
because accunul ati ons of grease, lubricants, and coal dust had been al | owed
to accunulate around the No. 1 belt conveyor drive located on the surface
The Assessnent Ofice considered the violation to have resulted from ordinary
negligence, to have been nmoderately serious, to have been abated in a norma
manner, and proposed a penalty of $66, whereas respondent has agreed to pay
a penalty of:$15. The npbtion states that the reduced penalty is warranted
because the accunul ated naterials did not create a hazard on the surface of
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of the mne and that respondent should be given credit for having achieved
rapid abatement. Also,'Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previ-
ously violated section 77.1104.

| find that the reasons hereinbefore given provide adequate bases for
approving the parties' settlement agreement with respect to the violations
alleged in Docket Ho. KENT 79-265.

Docket No. KENT 79-370

Ctation No. 712093 was witten under the unwarrantable failure pro-
visions, or section 104(d)(l), of the Act. The citation alleged that re-
spondent had viol ated section 75.1100-1(a) because the water supply for the
waterline running parallel to the belt conveyor was frozen. The Assessnent
Ofice waived the fornula provided for in 30 CF.R § 100.3 and proposed
a penalty of $500 on the basis of narrative findings enphasizing the criteria
of negligence and gravity.

Order No. 712097 was written, under section 104(d)(l) of the Act, about
2 hours after the citation described above was issued. The order alleged
that respondent had violated section 75.701 by failing to provide a frame
ground for a power cable supplying power to a subnersible punp | ocated about
90 feet outby the section tailpiece. The frame ground wire existed, but it
had not been connected because the section foreman had just not taken the
time required to connect the wire when he installed the punp. The Assess-
ment Office proposed a penalty of $500 for this alleged violation after making
narrative findings enphasizing the criteria of negligence and gravity.

Order No. 712701 was witten about 2 hours after the order described in
the preceding paragraph was witten. That order alleged that respondent had
violated section 75.512 by failing to maintain the brakes on a battery-
powered tractor in a safe operating condition. The order alleges that a
rod had broken so that the master cylinder could not be actuated by the brake
pedal.  The inspector considered the violation to be serious since the tractor
was used as a mantrip to take nminers in and out of the mine. The Assessnent
Ofice proposed a penalty of $750 for this alleged violation after making
narrative findings enphasizing the criteria of negligence and gravity.

The three violations described above constitute all the violations for
whi ch penalties are sought by the Proposal for Assessment of CGivil Penalty
filed in Docket No. KENT 79-370. The notion for approval of settlenent
states that respondent has agreed to pay reduced penalties of $200, $165
and $369, respectively, for the violations alleged in the citation and two
orders described above. The Prinmary reason given for reducing the penalties
proposed by the Assessment Ofice is that, in each case, respondent inmedi-
ately corrected the violations. The inspector's sheets evaluating negligence,
gravity, and good-faith abatement show that respondent stopped production
and immediately corrected the deficiencies cited in the citation and orders
The operator's pronpt action is not as inpressive as it mght be since two
of the violations were cited in withdrawal orders which would have caused
respondent to stop production in any event.
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As | have explained above, however, the evidence presented at the
hearing held as to sone of the violations involved in this proceeding
showed that respondent stopped production in order to achieve rapid com
pliance with respect to ordinary citations. There is no doubt, therefore,
but that respondent is entitled to maxi num consideration for achieving rapid
conmpliance. The question which remains, of course, is whether rapid good-
faith compliance is a sufficient consideration-to warrant approval of a
settlenent which reduces penalties proposed by the Assessnent O fice by
58 percent solely on the ground that respondent rapidly conplied with the
mandat ory safety standards after having been cited for violating them

Al though the notion for approval of settlenent does not point it out,
Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously violated either
section 75.701 alleged in Oder No. 712097 or section 75.1100-1(a) alleged
in Ctation No. 712093. Respondent has once before violated section 75.512
alleged in Order No. 712701. Section 75.512 refers to a general requirenent
of taking equipment out of service if it is not in safe operating condition.
A previous violation of section 75.512 does not nean that respondent has
necessarily previously failed to provide brakes for its tractor used as a
mantrip.

The third aspect of the violations which nerit acceptance of the settle-
ment agreenent is that a small mne producing only 134 tons of coal per day
is involved. Consequently, noderate penalties are appropriate under the
criterion of the size of respondent's business. Finally, as | have noted
in the first part of this decision, respondent's financial condition is such
that it has requested nmore than the usual 30 days within which to pay the
settlenent penalties agreed upon in this proceeding. In such circunstances
four of the six criteria show that reduced penalties are appropriate with
respect to the three violations alleged in Docket No. KENT 79-370. There-
fore, | find that the settlement agreement submtted by the parties in
Docket No. KENT 79-370 should be approved

Docket No. KENT 80-131

The Proposal for Assessment of Cvil Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT 80-
131 seeks assessment of civil penalties for 17 alleged violations. Ctation
No. 712712 alleged that respondent had viol ated section 75.1704 by al | owi ng
from7 to 18 inches of water to accunulate in the nmain intake airway which
was al so designated as an escapeway. The Assessnent Office found the viola-
tion to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been noderately
serious, to have been abated in a nornmal manner, and proposed a penalty of
$180, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $60. The
motion for approval of settlement states in effect that the reduced penalty
I's warranted because the violation was not as serious as it was considered
to be by the Assessment Ofice

It should be noted in connection with the 17 violations alleged in
Docket No. KENT 80-131 that the Assessment Ofice has increased the assign-
ment of penalty points under the criterion of history of previous violations
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to either 15 or 17 so that every penalty is assessed a m ni num anount of
$30 or $34 under that single criterion, whereas the Assessnment Office

eval uated all other violations alleged in this proceeding by assigning

8 penalty points, or $16, to each violation under the criterion of history
of previous violations. Exhibit No. 45 in this proceeding shows that
respondent has not previously violated section 75.1704. Therefore, sone
reduction in the penalties proposed by the Assessment Office is justified
with respect to the violation of section 75.1704 and as to nost of the
violations alleged in Docket No. KENT 80-131.

Ctation No. 712720 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.1100
by failing to provide 240 pounds of rock dust at a tenporary electrica
installation. The Assessment Office considered the violation to have re-
sulted from ordinary negligence, to have been noderately serious, to have
been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $106, whereas
respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $35. The notion states
in effect that a reduction in the penalty is warranted because the viol a-
tion was not as serious as it was considered to be by the Assessment Ofice.
Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent has once before violated section 75.1100.
The Assessnment Office attributed $34 of its proposed penalty to the criterion
of respondent's history of previous violations. | believe that no nore
tnan $10 should be attributed to respondent's history of previous violations
when there is only one previous violation and a small operator i s involved.

Citation No. 713477 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.523-2(c)
because a force of nore than 15 pounds was required to actuate the emergency
deenergi zation switch,' or panic bar on respondent's No. 1 tractor. The
Assessment OFfice considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary
negligence, to have been serious, to have been abated in a rapid manner,
and proposed a penalty of $130, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a
reduced penalty of $60. The notion states that a reduced, penalty is war-
ranted because a nechanic had been working on the panic bar to inprove its
responsi veness and that the violation was corrected in about 1-1/2 hours.

In such circumstances, it is obvious that respondent's negligence was not
as great as it was considered to be by the Assessnent Office and a greater
al | owance for the operator's rapid abatenent than was nade by the Assessnent
Ofice is justified under the criterion of rapid abatenent.

Citation No. 713478 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.523-2(c)
because a force of nore than 15 pounds was required to actuate the panic bar
on respondent's No. 2 tractor. The Assessnent COffice considered this second
violation of section 75.523-2(c) to have resulted fromordinary negligence,
to have been serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed
a penalty of $140, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty
of $60. The same reasons as those given in the preceding paragraph warrant
a reduction in the penalty proposed by the Assessment Office. The Assessnent
O fice assigned 10 penalty points under the criterion of negligence for the
preceding violation of section 75.523-2(c), but for some unexpl ained reason,
assigned only 9 penalty points for the second violation of that section.
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Al'so, the Assessment Ofice failed to consider that the second viol ation was
abated rapidly even though the nechanic succeeded in correcting both of the
violations within a time period of |ess than 4 hours, even though the inspec-
tor had given respondent until the following norning within which to achieve
conpliance. The sort of erratic assessment procedure shown by the Assessment
Ofice in this instance makes one wonder why we should wite hundreds of pages
to justify acceptance of penalties which are lower than those proposed by the
Assessnment Office.

Ctation No. 713479 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.1725
because the brakes on the roof-bolting machine were not operative. The Assess-
ment O fice considered the violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence
to have been serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a
penalty of $195, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $65
The notion states in effect that the reduced penalty is warranted because
the violation was less serious than it was considered to be by the Assessnent
Office. Additionally, Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously
viol ated section 75.1725, so the Assessnent Office's assignnentof $30 under
the criterion of history of previous violations is excessive.

Citation No. 713943 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.604
by failing to maintain four tenporary splices on the coal drill's trailing
cable so that they would exclude noisture. The Assessnent Office considered
the violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence, to have been serious
to have been abated in a normal fashion, and proposed a penalty of $114, whereas
respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $37. The notion states in
effect that the reduced penalty is warranted because the violation was not as
serious as it was considered to be by the Assessment Office. Aso the Assess-
ment Office attributed $30 of the penalty to respondent's history of previous
violations, whereas Exhibit No. 45 shows that respondent has not previously
viol ated section 75.604.

Citation No. 713944 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.316
because a water spray at the dunping point was inoperative. The Assessnent
Ofice considered the violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence, to
have been noderately serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and
proposed a penalty of $106, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced
penalty of $20. The notion states in effect that a reduced penalty is justi-
fied because the violation was not as serious as it was considered to be by
the Assessment O fice.

Ctation No. 713946 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.517
because power conductors were exposed at four different places in the trailing
cabl e supplying power to the coal drill. The Assessment Ofice considered the
violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence, to have been very serious
to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $210 which
respondent has agreed to pay in full. The motion states that the Secretary's
position as to this violation is that it was very serious and resulted from
a high degree of negligence and that the Assessment, COffice appropriately
determned that a relatively large penalty should be assessed in this instance
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Citation No. 713947 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.512
because the roof-bolting machine did not have operative headlights on either
end. The Assessment Office considered the violation to have resulted from
ordinary negligence, to have been noderately serious, to have been abated
in a normal nanner, and proposed a penalty of $106, whereas respondent has
agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $25. The notion states in effect that
a reduced penalty is warranted by the fact that the violation was not as
serious as it was considered to be by the Assessnent Ofice

Ctation No. 713948 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.1100-2(e)
because 240 pounds of rock dust had not been provided at a tenporary electrica
installation. The notion for approval of settlenent requests that the Proposa
for Assessnment of Civil Penalty in Docket No. KENT 80-131 be dismssed to the
extent that it seeks assessnent of a penalty for this alleged violation
because, if the hearing had been conpleted as to all alleged violations, the
evi dence woul d have shown that 240 pounds of rock dust were available at the
tenporary electrical installation here involved. That nmotion to dismiss wll
be granted as hereinafter ordered

Ctation Mo, 713949 alleged that respondent had viol ated section 75.1100
by having turned off the water valve through which water was supplied to
the waterline running parallel to the belt conveyor. The Assessment Ofice
considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have
been noderately serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed
a penalty of $114, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of
$38. The notion states that a reduced penalty is warranted because some
person had turned off the water valve for the waterline wthout respondent’s
managenment knowing of it. The notion concludes, therefore, that the violation
did not involve as much negligence and was not as serious as it was consi dered
to be by the Assessment Office

Ctation No. 713950 alleged that respondent had viol ated section 75.512
because a rear light on a tractor was inoperative. The Assessnent O fice
considered the violation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have
been serious, to have been abated in a normal nmanner, and proposed a penalty
of $140, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $46. The
motion states in effect that the reduced penalty is warranted because the
violation was not as serious as it was considered to be by the Assessment
Ofice

Ctation No. 713951 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.1100-2
because it-had failed to provide as much fire-fighting equipnent for the
working section as was required. The Assessnent Ofice considered the vio-
lation to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been' noderately
serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of
$130, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $42. The
motion states in effect that the reduced penalty is warranted because the

violation was not as serious as it was considered to be by the Assessment
O fice.
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Ctation No. 714902 alleged that respondent had viol ated gection 75. 200
because it had failed to provide a bar of suitable length for prying down
| oose materials fromthe roof. The Assessment Office considered the viola-
tion to have resulted fromordinary negligence, to have been very serious,
to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $249
whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $40. The m ;10“
states in effect that the violation did not involve nearly as much negli-
gence or gravity as was attributed to it by the Assessnment Ofice. It is
noted that pry bars of suitable Iength are |ocated throughout the section
and sometines are removed from the roof-bolting machine where one is normally
kept. The fact that respondent achieved conpliance by providing an adequate
bar within 10 mnutes after the violation was cited shows that bars were
readily available and indicates that respondent was entitled to a maxi mum
reduction of penalty points under the criterion of rapid abatenent.

Ctation No. 714903 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.503
by failing to maintain a shuttle car in permssible condition. The Assessment
Ofice considered the violation to have resulted from ordinary negligence
to have been serious, to have been abated in a normal manner, and proposed
a penalty of $160, whereas respondent has agreed to pay a reduced penalty
of $53. The notion states in effect that the reduced penalty is warranted
because the violation was not as serious as it was considered to be by the
Assessnment Office in view of the fact that no nethane has ever been detected
in respondent’s mne

Citation No. 714904 alleged that respondent had viol ated section 75.503
because it had failed to maintain the roof-bolting machine in a permssible
condition. The Assessment Office considered the violation to have resulted
from ordinary negligence, to have been noderately serious, to have been abated
in a normal nanner, and proposed a penalty of $122, whereas respondent has
agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $40. The notion states in effect that
the reduced penalty is warranted for the sane reasons given in the preceding
par agr aph.

Citation No. 714878 alleged that respondent had violated section 75.200
because several tinbers had been dislodged and not replaced al ong the mantrip
and haul age roadway. The Assessnent Office considered the violation to have
resulted from ordinary negligence, to have been serious, to have been abated
in a normal manner, and proposed a penalty of $180, whereas respondent has
agreed to pay a reduced penalty of $59. The motion states in effect that
the reduced penalty is warranted because the violation was not as serious
as it was considered to be by the Assessment Office. The inspector's state-
ment eval uating negligence and gravity shows that he thought the violation
was very serious. -The only basis for allowing a reduction in the penalty of
$180 proposed by .the Assessment Office in this instance is that a small oper-
ator is involved and that its financial condition is poor. I am approving
the settlement agreenments in this consolidated proceeding largely for the
reasons stated in the preceding sentence




I't should be noted that when evidence is introduced at a hearing by
both parties, an evaluation of the criteria based on that evidence be-
comes entirely different fromthe routine application of the formula
described in 30 CF.R § 100.3. The testimony of the various w tnesses
provi des the occurrence of violations with many nuances of negligence
and gravity which are not present apart fromthe inpact of oral descrip-
tions of events and responses by witnesses to detailed questions. The
hearing in this proceeding denonstrates the effect that a hearing has on
penalties determined on the basis of a fornula as opposed to penalties
based on testinony given at a hearing. The total penalties of $538 pro-
posed by the Assessment Office for the eight contested violations which
were the subject of the hearing were reduced in ny bench decisions to a
total of $246, or only 45 percent of the total amount proposed by the
Assessnent O fice. The contested violations were not chosen by respondent
as being those as to which the inspectors mght be especially vulnerable.
The eight contested violations just happened to be the first eight viola-
tions alleged by the Proposal for Assessment of Cvil Penalty filed in
Docket No. KENT 79-264.

The 51 violations as to which settlenents were reached involve a
reduction in the total penalties of $7,025 proposed by the Assessnent
Ofice to $2,850, or only 40 percent of the amount originally proposed by
the Assessment Office. The fact that the settlement anount is very close
to the result which occurred with respect to the hearing held as to the
contested viol ations nakes me believe that the settlement agreements
achieved a proper result in this proceeding with a great saving in hearing
time and expense to both the Government and to respondent.

WHEREFORE, for the reasons herinbefore given, it is ordered:

(A) The notion for approval of settlenent filed. on Decenber 29, 1980,
is granted and the settlement agreenents in each docket are approved.

(B) Tie notions for dismissal of the Proposals for Assessnment of Civil
Penalty are granted and the Proposals for Assessment of Civil Penalty in
Docket Nos. KENT 79-264, KENT 79-265, and KENT 80-131 are dismssed to the
extent that they seek assessment of civil penalties for the violations |isted
bel ow

Docket No. KENT 79-264

Citation No. 712096 2/13/79 § 17.1725(a) (Tr. 80)

Docket No. KENT 79-265

Citation No. 712729 2/28/79 § 77.1301
Ctation No. 712625 2/27/79 § 75.400
Citation No. 712627 2/27/79 § 75.512
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Docket No. KENT 80-131

Gitation No. 713948 5/15/79 § 75.1100-2(e)

(Q The Proposal for Assessment of CGivil Penalty filed in Docket No.
KENT 79-264 is dismssed to the extent that it seeks assessnent of a civil
penalty for a violation of section 75.303 because the Secretary failed to
prove that a violation of section 75.303 occurred (Tr. 61).

(D) Pursuant to the settlement agreements and ny bench decisions, supra,
respondent shall, within 90 days fromthe date of this decision, pay civil
penalties totaling $3,096.00, of which an amount of $246.00 is attributable
to penalties assessed in nmy bench decisions and the renaining anount of
$2,850.00 is attributable to the settlenent agreenents hereinbefore described
and approved. The penalties are allocated to the respective violations

as follows:
Docket No. KENT 79-264
CONTESTED
Gitation No. 712092 2/13/79 § 75.517 ... ... .. $ 1.00
Citation No. 712094 2/13/79 § 75.303 (Dismissed) «eeceeass --
Gitation No. 712095 2/13/79 § 75.1725 ...... ... ..., 50. 00
Citation No. 712096 2/13/79 § 75.1725(a) (Disnissed) ..... -
Citation No. 712098 2/13/79 § 75.523 ...........c.cuin... 60. 00
Gitation No. 712099 2/13/79 § 75.400 ............covu.u.. 35.00
Citation No. 712100 2/13/79 § 75.601 eeeevuccnvsccnscnsass 60. 00
Citation No. 712703 2/13/79 § 75.200 ..........ccuvvuu.... 40. 00
Total Penalties Assessed in Bench Decisions .............. $ 246.00
SETTLEMENTS ,
Docket No. KENT 79-264
Gtation No. 712702 2/13/79§ 75.523 ... ... ... ... .. $ 106.00
Citation No. 712704 2/13/79 8§ 75.517 .........cou ... 90. 00
Citation No. 712705 2/13/79 § 75.1722(b) ................. 60. 00
Citation No. 712706 2/13/79 § 75.313 ..., 17.00
Citation No. 712707 2/13/79§ 75.604 ..................... 30. 00
Citation No. 712708 2/13/79 8 75.604 ...............cc..... 30. 00
Gtation No. 712709 2/13/79 § 75.200 ..o .. 30. 00
Ctation No. 712710 2/13/79 § 75.503 ........ciiinin... 20. 00
Citation No..71271 1 2/13/79 § 75.202 ... ... .. 30. 00
Citation No. 712714 2/13/79 6§ 75.202 ..., 30. 00
Citation No. 712715 2/13/79 § 75.512 ......... ... ..., 17.00
Citation No. 712716 2/13/79 § 75.316 ..................... 12. 00
Total Settlenent Penalties in Docket No. KENT 79-264 ..... $ 472.00
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Docket Yo. KENT 80- 265

Ctation No. 712717 2/13/79 § 75.1202 .................... $ 5.00
Citation No. 712718 2/13/79 § 75.316 ..., 17.00
Gtation No. 712724 2/22/79 § 75.516-1 ................... 100. 00
Ctation No. 712729 2/28/79 § 77.1301 (Dismissed) ........ --
Gtation No. 712725 2/23/79 § 75.503 ..................... 21.00
Gtation No. 712726 2/23/79 § 75.703 ..................... 75. 00
Gtation No. 712727 2/23/79 § 75.1303 .................... 30. 00
Gtation No. 712728 2/23/79 § 75.1704 ... ... .. ... .. ..... 35.00
Gtation No. 712625 2/27/79 § 75.400 (Dismissed) .ccoecees --
Gtation No. 712626 2/27/79 § 75.1306 .................... 30. 00
Citation No. 712627 2/272/79 § 75.512 (Dismissed) .ceceeces -
Ctation No. 712628 2/27/79 § 75.1704-2(d) ............... 13. 00
Gtation No. 712629 2/27/79 § 75.1704 .................... 13.00
Gtation No. 712630 2/27/79 § 75.200 ..................... 50. 00
Gtation No. 712631 2/27/79 § 77.1001 .................... 25.00
Gtation No. 712632 2/27/79 § 77.1102 .................... 5.00
Gtation No. 712634 2/28/79 § 75.303 ..................... 15. 00
Ctation No. 712635 2/28/79 § 75.200 ..................... 305. 00
GCtation No. 712636 2/28/79 § 77.1104 .................... 15. 00
Total Settlenment Penalties in Docket No. KENT 79-265 ..... $ 754. 00

Docket No. KENT 79-370

Citation No. 712093 2/13/79 § 75.1100-1(a) ............... $ 200. 00
Oder No. 712097 2/13/79 § 75.701 ........ ... ... .. .. ... 165. 00
Oder No. 712701 2/13/79 § 75.512 ... ... .. ... ... it 369. 00
Total Settlenment Penalties in Docket No. KENT 79-370 ..... $ 734.00

Docket No. KENT 80-131

Ctation No. 712712 3/13/79 § 75.1704 . . .. .. ..... e $ 60.00
Ctation No. 712720 3/13/79 § 75.1100 .................... 35.00
Ctation No. 713477 5/15/79 § 75.523-2(c) ................ 60. 00
Gtation No. 713478 5/15/79 § 75.523-2(c) ................ 60. 00
Ctation No. 713479 5/15/79 § 75.1725 .................... 65. 00
Gtation No. 713943 5/15/79 § 75.604 ..................... 37.00
Ctation No. 713944 5/15/79 § 75.316 ..................... 20. 00
Ctation No. 713946 5/15/79 § 75.517 ......... ... ... ...... 210. 00
Ctation No. 713947 5/15/79 § 75.512 ..................... 25.00
Citation No. 713948 5/15/79 § 75.1100-2(e) (Dismissed) ... T
Gtation No. 713949 5/15/79 § 75.1100 .................... 38.00
Gtation No. 713950 5/15/79 § 75.512 ..................... 46. 00
Ctation No. 713951 5/15/79 § 75.1100-2 .................. 42.00
Gtation No. 714902 5/15/79 § 75.200 ..................... 40. 00
Ctation No. 714903 .5/15/79 § 75.503 ..................... 53.00
Ctation No. 714904 5/15/79 § 75.503 ..................... 40. 00
Gtation No. 714878 5/15/79 § 75.200 ..................... 59. 00
Total Settlenent Penalties in Docket No. KENT 80-131 ..... $ 890.00
Total Settlement Penalties in This Proceeding ............ $2,850.00
Total Cvil Penalties Assessed in This Proceeding ........ $3,096.00
Richard C. 2l
Richard C. Steffey

0y Admi ni strative Law Judge
1372 (Phone: 703-756-6225)




Di stribution:

WlliamF. Taylor, Attorney, Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnment
of Labor, Room 280, U.S. Courthouse, 801 Broadway, Nashville, TN
37203 (Certified Mail)

Herman W. Lester, Esqg., Attorney for Eddie Coal Conpany, Conbs and

Lester, PSC, P.0. Drawer 551, 207 Caroline Avenue, Pikeville, KY
41501 (Certified Mail)
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